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TO BE OPENED: January 13, 2014
TITLE: Montana Lottery Advertising and Media Services

ADDENDUM NO. 1
	
To All Offerors:

Attached are written questions received in response to this RFP.  These questions, along with the State's response, become an official amendment to this RFP.
 
All other terms of the subject "Request for Proposal" are to remain as previously stated.

Acknowledgment of Addendum:

The offeror for this solicitation must acknowledge receipt of this addendum. This page must be submitted at the time set for the proposal opening or the proposal may be disqualified from further consideration.

I acknowledge receipt of Addendum No. 1.

Signed: ___________________________________

Company Name: ____________________________

Date: ______________________

Sincerely,



Jodi Gollehon
RFP14-2657G
Addendum 1
Page 8

Contracts Officer
Addrfp“An Equal Opportunity Employer”

Revised 12/05
	
Question Number
	Page Number
	Section Number
	Questions & Answers for RFP #14-2657G

	1. 
	7
	1.7.2
	Q: Is there any flexibility with the ownership of RFP materials that we submit (i.e. - original ideas)?	
A:  As stated in Section 2.3 of the RFP, all information submitted in response to this solicitation is public information, including any copyrighted material.  This is a statutory requirement and obligates us to maintain ownership of the documents submitted.  If a vendor would like to withhold any documents from public viewing, they must comply with the requirements listed within Section 2.3.2. 

	2. 
	8
	2.2
	Q:  Do you have any geography restrictions to where you are hoping the agency will be based/have offices?

A: No, there are no restrictions.

	3. 
	9
	2.4.3
	Q:  Who will serve on the scoring committee?

A: The evaluation committee will consist of people actively involved the Lottery’s marketing and sales efforts.

	4. 
	11
	3.1.2
	Q:  What do you find to be your most successful product?

A: In recent years our most successful product has been EZPLAY®, our line of instant win games offered through one of our player activated terminals.

	5. 
	17
	3.11
	Q:  Is development of website enhancements and management of content maintained internally with Montana Lottery or under a separate contract?

A: The online vendor assists with the technical aspects of the website; however, enhancements and updates are maintained primarily by the Montana Lottery with the occasional assistance from the advertising agency.

	6. 
	17
	3.12
	Q:  The RFP states: “The contractor will provide a team of three individuals as specified by the Lottery to staff events…” and “The Lottery will not require the contractor to staff more than three events per year.” Does this mean 3 people for 3 events (for a total of 9 event staff) or 3 people total?

A: Please see Question 7 below for further description. The number of people, up to three, is coordinated between the Lottery and the Agency. The usual circumstance is that only one person is needed at a time. However, there may be occasions when both the agency and the Lottery want more than one person to participate in an event. 

	7. 
	17
	3.12.1
	Q:  Could you please provide a more detailed description of these Lottery events? Please include the times of the year these events take place and the duration of each event.

A:  The events that our agency typically participates in are in July and August, and have been two nine- to ten-day fairs, one in Great Falls and one in Billings. Historically, the agencies help us staff these events in a number of ways, from providing one or more persons that work on the Lottery’s account for three or more days of each event. In some cases, the agency has contracted with a temporary service to provide staffing. The Lottery’s preference and intent with this section is to give its agency team members a hands- on experience selling Lottery products and interacting with consumers and Lottery staff. The Lottery is reviewing its current events program and our events program is subject to revision.

	8. 
	14
	3.2.3
	Q:  Is the attendance to the Lottery Commission meetings at the agency’s expense? Time and travel?

A:  Attendance at the Lottery Commission meetings, held quarterly, are an agency expense, both time and travel.   

	9. 
	14
	3.2.4
	Q:  Who decides what the annual lottery budget is? Can you please share the historical amount for the past 5 years?

A: The Montana Lottery’s annual budget is determined by the State Legislature. The following is the advertising expenditures only. 
[image: ]

	10. 
	15
	3.4
	Q:  Do you have any customer segmentation data or historical research projects that you can share with us?

A:  We have attached a 2008 segmentation study and a top line report on focus groups conducted in June 2013.

	11. 
	16
	3.8
	Q:  Do you have an idea of budget that may be allocated for market research?

A:  The amount of budget for market research is inconsistent and based on priority. If market research becomes a priority need, other areas of the market budget are reduced to provide funding for research.

	12. 
	19
	4.2.4
	Q:  Given that we are a private organization, we do not typically share financial records with external partners. Would a reference from our bank suffice?

A:  According to our law, proposed vendors or suppliers must pass a criminal and a financial background check. The law requires a number of documents including audited financial statements. The law specifies five years; we are asking for the most recent three years.

	13. 
	20
	4.3.1.8
	Q:  Can you confirm the media budget for FY13? When calculated the numbers it equals 106%.

A: Due to the error, adjustment has been made to the percentages. 
•  49% Television advertising (includes cable)
•  11% Radio advertising
•  10% Production
•  5% Consumer Promotions
•  10% Outdoor Advertising
•  0% Print Advertising
•  15% Internet

	14. 
	20
	4.3.1.8
	Q:  Could you please provide samples of the creative work that ran in 2013?

A: Please see: http://www.montanalottery.com/limeLight

	15. 
	20
	4.3.1.8
	Q:  Could you please provide the actual media plans for the last two years?

A:  The media plans for the last two years have been made available via Appendix A. 

	16. 
	20
	4.3.1.8
	Q:  Please provide a breakdown of tactics employed under Internet advertising? Also, what tactics comprise the "Consumer Promotions" category?

A:  Internet Advertising currently consists of banner ads on select media sites, Facebook advertising, a text messaging program, and an email alert program. Consumer promotions are primarily free lottery tickets. Consumers could receive free plays as members of our Player’s Club through our drawings (weekly and monthly, occasionally daily). In addition, some retailers, with funding assistance from the Lottery, conduct BOGO promotions or other types of promotions designed to reward frequent players and encourage sampling of new products. On occasion, the Lottery has conducted statewide promotions that feature free or reduced cost tickets. 

	17. 
	20
	4.3.1.8
	Q:  This section indicates 16% of the media budget was spent on “Internet” in 2013.  Does that figure include advertising on social media sites such as Facebook?

A:  Yes. 

	18. 
	21
	4.3.2
	Q:  To what degree will the offeror be involved with website re-design? 

A:  At this time we are not planning to re-design the Montana Lottery website.

	19. 
	21
	4.3.2
	Q:  Is there a planned separate RFP for an updated Montana Lottery website?

A: The Lottery manages most functions of its website internally. As outlined in Section 4.3.2, the Lottery expects the advertising agency will assist with creative improvements to the site, and will serve as a member of the Lottery’s website team, as needed.

	20. 
	21
	4.3.2.1
	Q:  Can you describe what you mean by mobile device campaigns? Our example campaigns are complete so what do you suggest we place on the thumb drive?

A:  Mobile device campaigns would include examples of projects you have developed for other customers in which mobile devices have been the target of the campaign, i.e., driving the consumer to a mobile site, or an advertisement that was primarily placed on mobile sites. Regarding your example campaigns, we would prefer to receive either a web link where we can view your campaigns during our evaluation, or submit them to us on a USB device so we can insert the device into our computer and view the example campaigns.

	21. 
	41
	Appendix F
	Q:  Who do you consider to be your most successful product? What about your most profitable one? How come?
[bookmark: _GoBack]
A: In recent years, our most successful product has proven to be our EZPLAY ® line of instant win games offered at one of our player activated terminals. Our most profitable product is Powerball, historically providing 35-40 percent of the Lottery’s profit (as a percent of total revenue).

	22. 
	43
	Appendix F
	Q:  Is the contract (and renewals) with HMH at the seven year end?

A:  No. Due to the timing of other contract initiatives scheduled in the coming biennium, the advertising agency RFP was released at this time. 

	23. 
	43
	Appendix F
	Q:  What is the amount of the current retainer agreement with HMH - monthly and annually?

A:  The monthly retainer for the current advertising agency is $13,472.00.  This equates to $161,664.00 annually.

	24. 
	48
	Appendix F
	Q:  What is your breakdown of B2B (retailer marketing) to B2C (consumer) marketing?

A:  The paid media portion of our marketing is primarily targeted to consumers, but it does impact, educate and inform retailers as well.  

	25. 
	51
	Appendix F
	Q:  For digital services, are you looking for strategy only, or strategy and technical updates? Do you have in-house technical staff who manage the site and your social media? 

A:  The Montana Lottery expects the successful offeror to provide assistance with strategy. Social media and website management is primarily handled internally by the Montana Lottery; however when appropriate, and depending on the social media approach or product focus, the advertising agency will be included in the development of website and social media efforts.

	26. 
	N/A
	
	Q: Who is the current contractor?  How long have they been providing these services?  Are they participating in the RFP?  

A:  HMH Agency is our current contractor. They are not involved in the solicitation process.  If they have submitted a response to the RFP, or if they intend to, the State will not know until the closing date.”

	27. 
	N/A
	
	Q:  Do you feel your past campaigns have been successful? Why or Why not?

A:  Yes. Our sales year over year continue to increase, and our transfer to the State General Fund has increased as well. Consumers recognize our branding efforts and we have built an effective and robust social media presence, with a higher per capita membership than any other U. S. lottery. We continue to enhance our games and our promotional efforts more effectively and efficiently, as we add retailers to our network (up from 750 retailers in 2010 to over 850 today). 

	28. 
	N/A
	
	Q:  What other agencies submitted questions to this RFP?

A:  BWH1 Advertising Design Interactive; Connelly Partners; HMH Agency; Partners Creative; The Wendt Agency

	29. 
	N/A
	
	Q:  Has Lottery been pleased with the results of the campaigns over the past two years?

A:  Yes. 

	30. 
	N/A
	
	Q:  What does Lottery describe as their greatest recent marketing success? And how do they quantify that?

A:  For our 2012 Montana Millionaire raffle game, the Lottery and its agency strategized a new way to offer this seasonal game which offers a limited number of tickets sold for $20 over a two-month period. As a result of improvements in the game and the advertising and promotional efforts, the game was a success. For the first time since beginning Montana Millionaire (in 2007), the game sold out prior to the December 31 deadline. The major strategies that led to this success were 1) a fun commercial that resonated with the public; 2) implementing advertising from the beginning of the game, instead of half-way through the two-month sales period; 3) addition of $500 instant win prizes in the game; and 4) focused sales staff efforts in retail locations where print materials and digital displays drew attention to the game. 

	31. 
	N/A
	
	Q:  Historically (past three years) what has the lottery spent on: Agency retainer/compensation and Production (broken down by broadcast, point of purchase, print materials).

A:  [image: ]

	32. 
	N/A
	
	Q:  Who does the lottery contract with to conceive and generate the games themselves?

A:  Lottery staff and the Lottery’s other primary contractors design and implement the games. The other primary contracts held by the Lottery are: 
1.  For the online gaming system, and 
2.  For the scratch ticket printing and services.

	33. 
	N/A
	
	Q:  Who plays the lottery now? Who would they like to have playing the lottery that isn't?

A:  Please see the segmentation study (Appendix B) and the recent Montana Cash (Appendix C) focus group study for information on current Montana Lottery players. The Montana Lottery is interested in increasing play among the emerging market, primarily 21 to 35. 

	34. 
	N/A
	
	Q:  Is there research available on your primary audience?

A:  See MUSL report and Montana Cash executive summary.

	35. 
	N/A
	
	Q:  Can we see or get copies of your most recent campaigns?

A:  Please see: http://www.montanalottery.com/limeLight for recent commercials and other website pages for game information. 
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Advertising expenditures FY 2009 - FY 2013

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

Media $852,736 $617,438 $638,550 $610,303 $553,906

Production $217,682 $429,878 $249,447 $155,662 $200,395

Agency Retainer $141,660 $141,660 $141,660 $141,660 $141,660

Consumer promotions $283,607 $114,071 $37,983 $40,162 $31,872

Printing and POS $127,310 $65,980 $47,843 $30,839 $38,190
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